
 

 

w 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

5. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

6. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Grocery Outlet Update 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. City of Warrenton Urban Renewal Plan Amendment 

b. North Coast Tourism Management Network Visitor Transportation Team Update 

c. Drug and Alcohol Testing 

10. CORRESPONDENCE 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

14. OTHER ITEMS 

 

 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY AUGUST 22, 2019 

9:00 AM 

Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 

   1



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

August 
 2019 

Page 1 of 3 
 

AASHTO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS 

ACT  ACTUAL 

ACCTS  ACCOUNTS 

ADA  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

ADS  ADVERTISEMENTS 

AP  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

APTA  AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORATION ASSOCIATION 

AR  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

ASC  ASTORIA SENIOR CENTER 

BG  BACKGROUND 

BLDGING BUILDING 

BOC  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BS  BALANCE SHEET 

BUS REG FEE BUS REGISTRATION FEE 

CCC  CLASTOP COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CCCHD  CLATSOP CARE CENTER HEALTH DISTRICT 

CCO  COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CK  CHECK 

COMP  COMPUTER 

CONF  CONFERENCE 

CPCCO  COLUMBIA PACIFIC COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CRS  CLATSOP REHABILITATION SERVICES 

CSR  CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

CTAA  COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 

CTE  CENTER FOR TRANSPORTATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

DAV  DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS 

DHS  DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIST  DISTRICT 

DLSM  DRIVE LESS SAVE MORE 

DMAP  DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

DOJ  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

DOT  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EQUIP  EQUIPMENT 

FHWA  FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

FTA  FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

GF  GENERAL FUND 

HR  HUMAN RESOURCES 

IGA  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

INFO  INFORMATION 

INT  INTEREST 

IS  INCOME STATEMENT 

ISN  INTEGRATED NETWORK SYSTEM 

IT  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

   2



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

August 
 2019 

Page 2 of 3 
 

LGIP  LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 

LGPI  LOCAL GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL INSTITUTE 

LRCTP  LONG RANGE COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

MAINT  MAINTENANCE 

MBRC  MILES BETWEEN ROAD CALLS 

MISC  MISCELLANEOUS 

MM  MOBILITY MANAGEMENT 

MOS  MONTH 

MOU  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

NADTC  NATIONAL AGING AND DISABILITY TRANSPORTATION CENTER 

NEMT  NON-EMERGENT MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION 

NHMP  NATURAL HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN 

NRTAP  NATIONAL RURAL TRANSIT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

NTI  NATIONAL TRANSIT INSTITUTE 

NWACT  NORTHWEST AREA COMMISSION ON TRANSPORTATION 

NWOTA  NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE 

ODOT  OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

OHA  OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

OHP  OREGON HEALTH PLAN 

OPTC  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

OPTIS  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSIT INFORMATION SYSTEM 

OPTP  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

OR  OREGON 

OTA  OREGON TRANSIT ASSOCIATION 

OTC  OREGON TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

P&L  PROFIT AND LOSS 

PARA  PARA-TRANSIT 

PCA  PERSONAL CARE ATTENDANT 

PTAC  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

QE  QUALIFIED ENTITY 

QTR  QUARTER 

RAC  RULES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

RAC  RIDECARE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

RC  RIDECARE 

REHAB  REHABILITATION 

RFP  REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

RFQ  REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

RIBTC  RURAL AND INTERCITY BUS TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

RPTD  RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION 

SDAO   SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON 

SDIS  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INSURANCE SERVICES 

SETD  SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SETD GF SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

   3



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

August 
 2019 

Page 3 of 3 
 

SETD GEN SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SIP  SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

SSP/0401 ACCOUNT FROM OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

STF  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

STIF  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND 

STIP  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

STN  STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

STP  SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

STS  SUNSET TRANSPORTATION SERVICES (NAME CHANGE THAT DIDN’T HAPPEN) 

TAC  TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

TAC  TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (STF/5310/STIF) 

TECH  TECHNOLOGY 

TGM  TRANSPORTATION GRANTS MANAGEMENT 

TO  TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS 

TPAC  TRANSPORTATION PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

TPJCC  TONGUE POINT JOB CORPS CENTER 

TRB  TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH BOARD 

TSP  TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS PLAN 

YTD  YEAR TO DATE 

ZEB  ZERO EMISSION BUS 

ZEP  ZERO EMISSION PROPULSION 

ZEBRA  ZERO EMISSION BUS RESOURCE ALLIANCE 

 

   4



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 (2)(d) To conduct  

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Chair Kathy Kleczek called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM  
 

2. ROLL CALL: 

Present: Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Bryan Kidder, Commissioner Tamra Taylor, Commissioner Pamela 

Alegria. Commissioner Tracy MacDonald, Commissioner Debbie Boothe-Schmidt.  Commissioner Kevin 

Widener was excused 
 

Staff: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, COO Paul Lewicki, Financial Officer Dave Peterson, Executive Assistant 

Mary Parker, Mobility Manager Jason Jones, Human Resource Officer Tami Carlson 
 

3. SWEARING IN OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS- Chair Kleczek officiated the swearing in of the newly elected 

Board Commissioners: Tracy MacDonald, Bryan Kidder, Debbie Boothe-Schmidt and Tamra Taylor.  

 

4. ELECTIONS OF OFFICERS 

Commissioner Kidder moved to elect Commissioner Kathy Kleczek as Board Chairperson.  

Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Kidder commented that Chair Kleczek has done a great job as Chair. 

Commissioner MacDonald agreed and said Kathy’s position with Special Districts and other assignments 

well qualify her.  Chair Kleczek thanked everyone for the vote of confidence.  

Motion passed unanimously 

 

Commissioner MacDonald moved to elect Commissioner Bryan Kidder as Vice Chair 

Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion 

Discussion- Chair Kleczek commented that Bryan has been an excellent Vice Chair and that she looks 

forward to passing the Chair position on in the future and that Bryan would make an excellent Board 

Chair.  

Motion passed unanimously 
 

Commissioner Kidder moved to elect Commissioner Debbie Boothe-Schmidt as Secretary Treasurer 

Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion 

Discussion- There was discussion about the time requirements of the Secretary Treasurer. 

Motion passed unanimously 

 

5. CHANGES TO AGENDA- None. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT- None  
 

7. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 25, 2019 BOARD MEETING MINUTES: 

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the July 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. 

Commissioner Kidder seconded the motion 

Discussion- Spelling correction of legality and Sunset were made.  

Motion passed unanimously 
 

8. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

a. Commissioner Alegria- No Report  

b. Commissioner MacDonald- Reported that he was feeling better and glad to be at the meeting.  

c. Commissioner Taylor- Nothing to report 

d. Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt- Nothing to report 

 
Sunset Empire Transportation District 

Board of Commissioners  

Draft Meeting Minutes  

July 25, 2019 
 

   5



 

2 

 

e. Vice Chair Kidder- Reported that he was happy to have the new members on board looking forward to 

having another good year and finding ways to expand transit options in the county.  
 

f. Chair Kleczek- Reported that Senator Johnson was at the last Area Commission on Transportation 

meeting and gave the legislative update which highlighted that the main obstacle now present is the huge 

divide in the legislature. Chair Kleczek also reported that we need to keep an eye on the diesel fuel tax 

that has been imposed in the metro area as Senator Johnson said it is likely going to be expanded to the 

entire state. Chair Kleczek reported that the committee reviewed the shovel ready project lists that could 

be eligible if funding suddenly becomes available. The ACT committee determined there is more work to 

be done to assure the projects have been on a list of projects, brought up before and or part of local 

transportation strategic plans. Chair Kleczek reported that there is a lot of movement by ODOT to 

improve intersections along the Highway 30 corridor from Clatskanie to Scappoose. Chair Kleczek said 

the ACT in this region is known as one of the most active in the state.  

.  

 

9. FINANCIAL REPORTS- Finance Officer, Dave Peterson reported that he is preparing to close the books for the 

fiscal year. Dave also reported that he will continue using the same report forms that had been being used with 

one change to the Exceptions Report which will be to highlight any revenue and expense items that are 20% over 

budget and a minimum dollar amount of activity of $5000 a year. Dave asked if putting things of major 

significance on the Exceptions Report page was agreeable to the Board and said he recommended it. Chair 

Kleczek asked if Dave could also list any large anomalies, out of the ordinary or odd expenditure that falls outside 

of the 20% rule and if ok with the rest of the Board. Dave said he would include any anomalies. Dave reviewed 

the July Exceptions and Financial Report.  

Executive Director Hazen said the Board had approved new financial software that we were going to have by July 

1st, however we have put that on hold right now because Dave, who has a lot of experience in financial software, 

was concerned about the cost of the software we had selected and recommended we look at Caselle accounting 

software, get some numbers in place and also look at how to get out of the other software agreement. Executive 

Director Hazen there would be a very significant savings even with what we have already paid for training. Chair 

Kleczek asked if Caselle has the extra modules we have been looking at. Dave said this will be a fully integrated 

accounting software package and they specialize in fund accounting and are used throughout the state and by 

many of our neighbors including the City of Astoria and the City of Cannon Beach. Dave said Caselle will be here 

the second week in August. Executive Director Hazen said we will bring this back before the Board. 

Commissioner Taylor asked if the loss we are seeing is what we would be looking at in a normal year? 

Commissioner Kidder said no we do not operate at a loss, but there have been some unusual things take place this 

year. Chair Kleczek asked about line 4100 Contracted services looks like it is twice as much as budgeted for and 

was not on the Exceptions page. Executive Director Hazen said they will look into this. Chair Kleczek also asked 

about Miscellaneous Income line 4310 of $6,400. Dave said this was an insurance reimbursement payment. 

Commissioner Alegria said that in 10 years from now no one will know what the $6400 under Miscellaneous 

Income was for. Executive Director Hazen said it is now in the minutes. Dave said it also should have been in the 

Exceptions Report. Chair Kleczek asked about fund balance line 3700 NW Ride Center. Dave said he will do 

some research on this. Commissioner Alegria asked about the NW Ride Center having a -$7.00 balance. Dave 

said that things like this will be cleaned up with the new accounting software.  

Commissioner Kidder moved to accept the financials as presented 

Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 

Discussion- None  

Motion passed unanimously  
 

10. OLD BUSINESS-  
 

a. FY 2018 Audit Corrective Action Plan Adoption- Executive Director Hazen said that SETD had 

deficiencies for the FY 2018 Audit. We submitted a Corrective Action Plan to the Secretary of State. 

We received a letter from ODOT about the deficiencies and the need to communicate the Corrective 

Action Plan with them. Executive Director Hazen said staff is recommending that the Board adopt 

   6



 

3 

 

the Corrective Action Plan and authorize the Chair to sign the response letter so it can be submitted 

to ODOT. 

Commissioner MacDonald moved to adopt the Corrective Action Plan FY 2018 and 

authorize the Chair to sign the letter to ODOT 

Commissioner Kidder seconded the motion 

Discussion- Chair Kleczek asked if we should clarify that the contact person listed in the 

first letter is no longer here. Executive Director Hazen said he is the contact person for 

ODOT. 

Motion passed unanimously 
 

b. Cannon Beach Intergovernmental Agreement Update- Executive Director Hazen reported he gave a 

presentation on SETD’s services and funding along with a discussion on the IGA. There was 

discussion about services and how happy Cannon Beach is with the Streetcar being used. The IGA 

will go before the Cannon Beach City Council for approval on August 6th.  
 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Meeting Dates for November and December 2019- Executive Director Hazen reported that it has been a 

past practice to adjust the Board meeting dates in November and December. Chair Kleczek also added 

that this is a busy time for staff with vacations, holiday plans and arranging for the Holiday Party and is 

year end. Following Board discussion, the Board agreed that the November Board meeting would be 

cancelled, and a combination November/December Board meeting will be held on December16th at 9:00 

AM.  
  

b. Oregon Public Transportation Conference (OPTC)- Executive Director Hazen reported that the OPTC 

Conference is going to be held at the Seaside Convention Center. October 27th thru 30th. SETD typically 

receive 3 full scholarships that cover lodging and unlimited scholarships for registration. Hazen said since 

the conference is being held in Seaside, we will not be utilizing the full scholarships. Following Board 

discussion, it was determined that the entire Board will be attending, and that staff will register them. 
 

c. Committee Assignment- Chair Kleczek made the following committee assignments for the next year.  

• Transportation Advisory Committee- Vice Chair Kidder with Commissioner MacDonald as 

alternate. 

• Executive Director Evaluation and Compensation Committee- Current SETD Board Officers 

• Northwest Oregon Commission on Transportation- Chair Kleczek 

 

d. Ridership Appreciation Day- Executive Assistant Mary Parker reported that we historically have held 

Ridership Appreciation Day on the same day as the Project Homeless Connect Event held in Seaside at 

the Convention Center. Mary explained that SETD offers bus service at no cost to our riders for the entire 

day and to those attending the Homeless Connect Event. The no charge bus services will only be available 

within Clatsop County.  

Commissioner Taylor moved that we piggyback Ridership Appreciation Day with Project 

Homeless Connect in 2020 and offer bus services at no charge in Clatsop County only.  

Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 

Discussion-None 

Motion passed unanimously 

 

e. Board of Directors vs Board of Commissioners- Executive Director Hazen reported that he had noticed 

that the positions for SETD Board members were listed as Board Director on the election forms. Hazen 

said that in checking with the District Formation documents refer to Board members as directors. 

Following Board discussion, the Board requested that Executive Director Hazen check with the County 

Elections Department to see if the Board could continue to use Board “Commissioner” and if there would 

be a way to change this in the District documents.  

 

   7



 

4 

 

12. CORRESPONDENCE- None  
 

13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reported that Matthew Weintraub, SETD 

Transportation Options Specialist resigned and we will be doing interviews for that position next week. Hazen 

also announced that Tami Carlson, SETD Human Resources Officer has resigned and her last day will be 

tomorrow. Hazen said that Tami was our Paratransit Supervisor and then applied for the Human Resources 

position and has done a great job at it and has been a joy and pleasure to work with. Tami said it has been a 

pleasure and that she is starting a new chapter in her life and will stay in contact. Chair Kleczek added that the 

District will greatly miss Tami, her input, energy, knowledge and her desire to learn and grow and that her 

contributions will be greatly missed.  

Executive Director Hazen reported that he has been working on the ridership worksheets and is updating the Rider 

Reports which he will have for the Board next month. Hazen attended a work session at the City of Astoria and 

updated them on our services and upcoming expansions and touched on a pedestrian campaign that has been 

started. Commissioner Kidder asked if there was conversation about using the Streetcar in Astoria. Hazen said he 

had also met with Sarah from the Astoria Downtown Historical District Association and discussed our routes and 

working with the city on the parking issues and coordinating some outreach and the pedestrian campaign. 

Commissioner Kidder asked about the CDL program that Tillamook and Clatsop College are doing which costs 

about $5000 and asked what we are currently doing. Executive Director Hazen said we now require drivers to 

have their CDL permit. Paul said Lawrence is currently our driver trainer and covers all that is needed for a CDL 

which costs much less than $5000. Commissioner Kidder asked what if we train drivers and as soon as they get 

their CDL they are gone. Paul said that it could happen, but we are training for bus drivers, so this is not the same 

as the college.  Commissioner Kidder said he recently rode the Bolt bus and said he hoped that we will be taking 

their schedule into consideration when we plan our Portland route. Commissioner Kidder said we were paying 

close attention when the Grocery Outlet was going to go in Seaside, but now that they are looking at Astoria, are 

there any kind of issues that will be affecting us? Executive Director Hazen said the traffic in the area has several 

problems. Following Board discussion, the Board requested that staff draft a letter that states that the District is 

extremely concerned about the impact that locating the Grocery Outlet there will have on our ability to maintain 

our services and that at a minimum what we would like to see is the Grocery Outlet be responsible for 

construction of a pull out and shelter for our services which is made to our specifications.  
 

Chair Kleczek asked that the Strategic Plan be updated. 
 

Executive Director Hazen played a Customer Service training video for the Board.   
 

14. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Reports submitted: Operations- Paul Lewicki, Ride Assist- Jennifer Geisler, 

Marketing and Outreach- Mary Parker, Mobility Management- Jason Jones and Human Resources-Tami Carlson, 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT- None 

                                                

16. OTHER ITEMS- Commissioner MacDonald asked if we could get a sign to the City of Seaside Public Works 

Department for the bus stop that was made on Necanicum.   

   

 

 

Meeting was adjourned 11:00 AM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 

 

 
 

________________________________________________       Date_____________________ 

Secretary Treasurer  

 

 
An audio recording of this Meeting is available at:  www.ridethebus.org-Board of Commissioners- Monthly Minutes- July 25, 2019  

 

   8

http://www.ridethebus.org/


Date: August 14, 2019 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.a Grocery Outlet 

 

At its August 1st meeting, the Design Review Committee received a lot of public comment both 

in person and written.  Traffic congestion seems to be the main topic of concern.  The hearing 

will be continued until September 5th. 

 

No action is needed as our letter that is attached became part of the record. 

   9



                                                                                                                                                  
 

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
                                                900 Marine Drive Astoria, Oregon 97103 
 
 

Phone 503-861-7433  Fax 503-325-1606   www.ridethebus.org  

 

July 31, 2019 

 

City of Astoria Design Review Committee 

c/o Community Development Department  

1095 Duane St. 

Astoria, OR 97103 

 

Members of the Design Review Committee: 

 

Thank you for this opportunity to provide comment on the proposed development of a grocery 

store to be in the Mill Pond neighborhood (DR19-03).   

 

The Board of Commissioners discussed this development at their meeting on July 25th.  The 

Board is concerned about the traffic impact that this project will have on Marine Dr.  In this area, 

Marine Dr. is problematic for the on-time performance of our buses serving Astoria.  This is 

especially true during the summer months, but increasingly during other months as well.  

 

While we support economic development, impacts to the surrounding area should be taken into 

consideration when going through the review process.  With this in mind, we highly suggest that 

as a condition of approval for this project, that the committee look at how people will access this 

development and what the impact will be to the traffic on Marine Dr.  We would like to 

recommend that some traffic mitigation measures be included in the approval.  We would also 

ask that consideration be given to the developer installing a bus pullout and shelter to be one of 

those mitigation measures.  The encouragement of people to utilize public transportation can be 

part of the solution of reducing congestion. 

 

Thank you for your consideration, 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Kathy Kleczek 

Board Chairperson 

 

Cc:  Brett Estes, City Manager 

   10

http://www.ridethebus.org/


Date: August 14, 2019 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 9.a City of Warrenton Urban Renewal Plan Amendment 

 

We received the attached notification from the City of Warrenton that they are planning to 

amend their existing Urban Renewal Plan.  This is the District’s opportunity to provide written 

comments on the amendment.  Deadline for submission is September 9th.  This amendment will 

have an impact of $84,110 on the District through 2028.   

 

The Board needs to discuss if they would like to provide comment on the plan amendment and 

direct staff to draft a letter and authorize the Board Chair to sign it. 

   11



   12



   13



   14



   15



   16



   17



   18



   19



   20



   21



   22



   23



   24



   25



   26



   27



   28



   29



   30



   31



   32



   33



   34



   35



   36



   37



   38



   39



   40



   41



   42



   43



   44



   45



   46



   47



   48



   49



   50



   51



   52



   53



   54



   55



   56



   57



   58



   59



   60



   61



   62



   63



   64



   65



   66



   67



   68



   69



   70



   71



   72



   73



   74



   75



   76



   77



   78



   79



   80



   81



   82



   83



   84



   85



   86



   87



   88



   89



   90



   91



   92



   93



Date: August 14, 2019 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 9.b North Coast Tourism Management Network  

Visitor Transportation Team Update 

 

The Visitor Transportation Team was formed as a result of the North Coast Tourism Studio.  The 

goal of the Studio is to determine mitigation strategies on the impacts of tourism to the north 

coast area of Clatsop and Tillamook counties.  Traffic congestion and transportation strategies 

became a focal point of the Studio and the Visitor Transportation Team has been meeting 

monthly.  I have attached a rack card that is part of a pilot program in Cannon Beach to heighten 

awareness of travel options to the coast for visitors.  Both Mary and I reviewed and made 

changes to the rack card.  The other component of this pilot program is that hotels in Cannon 

Beach will be attaching a link to transportation options in their reservation confirmation emails 

sent to people making reservations. The Tillamook County Visitors Association is funding the 

rack card.   

 

No action is needed. 

   94



Plan your Car-Free Cannon Beach Trip

Car-free Ways 
to get from 
Portland to the 
Oregon Coast

POINT Bus
Visits the Oregon Coast twice a day. 
https://oregon-point.com/northwest-point/

NW Connector
A public transit service that o�ers visitor passes and 
provides connections from the valley to the coast. 
https://www.nworegontransit.org/

Travel Oregon
Car-free itineraries that provide inspirational and 
tactical solutions for traveling to the North Coast. 
https://traveloregon.com/things-to-do/trip-ideas/
favorite-trips/car-free-getaway-astoria-north-coast/

3

   95



Bike
Bring your bike on the POINT Bus or via the 
Northwest Connector! Cannon Beach is a great 
place to ride.

Check with your hotel on bike rental options.

Shuttle
The NW Connector has a local Cannon Beach 
shuttle and provides public transit connections to 
neighboring cities. 
https://www.nworegontransit.org/

Check with your hotel on available shuttle services.

Walk
Cannon Beach is walkable!

Plan your Car-Free Cannon Beach Trip

Once you’re here

   96



Date: August 14, 2019 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Drug and Alcohol Testing 

 

In a recent review of our updated Drug and Alcohol Program, I discovered that we have been in 

violation of law regarding pre-employment drug testing.   

 

On March 13, 2008, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision limiting public 

employer drug testing. In Lanier v. City of Woodburn, the Ninth Circuit held that the City’s 

policy requiring all job applicants to pass a pre-employment drug test as a condition of 

employment was unconstitutional as applied to an applicant for a library page position. However, 

the Ninth Circuit signaled that a pre-employment drug testing program would not be 

unconstitutionally applied where the employer could articulate a special need for testing without 

suspicion.  Pre-employment testing of employees in safety sensitive positions is allowable, but 

those positions that are not safety sensitive are not allowed to be drug tested as a condition of 

employment.  Safety sensitive positions include the Chief Operations Manager, Driver 

Supervisors, Paratransit Supervisory, Drivers, Dispatchers, Maintenance Supervisors, Mechanics 

and Mechanic Assistants. 

 

We have halted this practice for non-safety sensitive positions and will be updating our drug and 

alcohol policy.  I am getting assistance from one of our attorneys we work with on employee 

issues from SDAO. 

 

No action is needed as this is an operational policy. 

   97



Executive Director Report 

August Board Meeting 

Jeff Hazen  

 

-STIF  

PTAC has reviewed our STIF Formula Fund plan and is making a recommendation to the OTC 

that our plan be approved by the OTC.  The OTC will be meeting in The Dalles September 17-18 

and I will be presenting all of the second round STIF plans to the OTC on the 18th  and 

recommending that they approve all of the plans including ours.   

 

-STIF Discretionary Grant 

We are currently researching various vendors to purchase 2 motor coaches. 

 

-NW Point Bus 

The RFQ evaluations have been done and ODOT is now negotiating the new contract. 

 

STF/STIF consolidation  

 

The Consolidation Advisory Committee has been selected and I’m pleased that Todd Wood, the 

Transit Administrator for Columbia County is on that committee.  I have already communicated 

my current thoughts on the consolidation with him and will continue to do so as I think of more 

things. 

 

Driver positions 

 

We are experiencing a critical shortage of drivers.  We have had to cancel route a couple of times 

due to lack of drivers and our driver supervisors are having to do a significant amount of driving.  

I’m pleased to see that we have seen an uptick in interest with the job posting that we have put 

on  Facebook and Indeed.  We have made a conditional offer to one applicant this week and Paul 

is setting up additional interviews.  We plan on beginning our service expansion in September 

but may have to delay it based on the driver recruitment. 

 

Human Resources Manager 

 

We have the position posted internally and will have the external recruitment in place by August 

16th.   

 

Goodman Park sign 

 

A sign has been ordered and the City will install the sign for us at the bus pullout. 

 

 

 

   98



LowNo Grant 

 

I have a debrief meeting set with the LowNo Grant manager in October to review our application 

and hopefully identify things we can improve on next year.  They had over $400,000,000 

requested for $85,000,000 in funding. 

 

Emailed Updates 

 

8/12/19 

I’m pleased to report that I was not selected for a jury panel last Tuesday, so I was in the office 

all week.  I’ll continue to call in for the rest of the month for other trials.  No trials are scheduled 

this week at this point.  Here is an interesting article regarding CC Rider and their contractor, 

MTR Western, https://pamplinmedia.com/scs/83-news/435576-346140-cc-rider-operator-

threatens-to-end-service.  MTR is also the contractor for the NW Point route with ODOT.  For 

the new Board members, we embarked on a feasibility study a couple of years ago to see if 

penciled out to expand our boundaries and include Columbia County in our District.  The result 

of the study showed that it didn’t make sense at that point.  However, the numbers that the 

former administrator gave the consultant may not have been accurate, so we don’t know if the 

results would have been different.   At the upcoming National RTAP conference, I’ll be a 

moderator for a Marketing session and a panelist talking about working with consultants.  Jason 

will be attending the conference with me as well.  I’ve been working with ODOT rail on the 

State Rail Plan Update developing the passenger needs list.  I attended by phone last week 

following up on our discussion from last month’s meeting on the list.  A lot of time was spent 

talking about improving connections with transit in each of the communities that the Amtrak 

Cascades route and the Coast Starlight serve.  At Friday’s NWOTA meeting, we approved the 

submission that Trillium provided for the RFQ that we put out last month for marketing services 

for the NW Connector.  Trillium was the only proposal we received, and we are confident that 

they will continue to be great to work with.  Trillium handles all of the GTFS for every transit 

agency in Oregon and they designed and built the website for the NW Connector and each of the 

agencies that are members of NWOTA.  They are going to be building a new trip planner for the 

website that will be much more robust and user friendly and not have the time limits on it that 

the current on that is a Google based one has.  Selena Barlow will be one of the persons working 

on the plan with Trillium.  She is the premier transit marketing expert in the nation, and we look 

forward to moving to more electronic marketing strategies rather than just print and radio where 

we haven’t been able to track the effectiveness of the advertising.  I’ll begin the recruiting for 

HR this week so we can hopefully get someone in place in September. 

 

8/6/19 

Mary, Jason and I interviewed finalists for the Transportation Options position last week.  I had a 

meeting with NW Community Alliance (formerly Coast Rehabilitation).  They have been 

experiencing some transportation challenges, so I helped them navigate some of the issues and 

put them in touch with the right people.  They will also be reaching out to Jason for assistance in 

travel training for their clients.  I was interviewed by an intern at the Astorian about our driver 

   99



shortage.  The article is on the front page of today’s paper.  She did a good job in describing the 

challenges that we have.  We’ve received a few applications last week for drivers through 

Facebook and Indeed.  We’ve directed them to fill out our application so we can get them set up 

for interviews.  PTAC met via phone yesterday and we unanimously approved the 

recommendation of the subcommittee to recommend that the OTC approve the 22 STIF formula 

fund plans from the second round.  I will be presenting all of the plans to the OTC in September 

and am excited to share with them that the $62,000,000 in projects will help get $33,000,000 in 

federal funds for transit.  The projects will add over 4.8 million rides, add 8.2 million revenue 

miles, add over 484,000 hours of revenue service, and help fund the purchase of over 130 new 

buses.  There are many more projects that will be funded through STIF.   

 

   100



Page 1 of 2 
 

 2019-2021 SETD Priorities  
   
Priority One   
   

• Benchmark Services   
o Ridership Increases & Decreases   
o On-time Performance  July was 41.9% on time.  TCTD was 

54.4% and Lincoln County was 60.4%. 
o Fleet reliability   
o Employee Retention      
   

• Develop a SETD specific emergency plan.   
o SETD operational specific emergency operation plan   
o Medical emergencies   
o Accidents   
o Behavioral emergencies at facilities and on buses   
o Emergency contact and reporting requirements   
o Strategic county wide transportation plan that integrates into 

Clatsop County Emergency Plan. 
  

• Develop a Succession Plan for Key Management Positions  
  
• Develop Route Standards  

o Summer Schedule   
o September Through May Schedule  

  
• Develop Demand Management Standards  

o Paratransit  
o Dial a Ride  
o First Mile Last Mile  

    
• Increasing services   

o Fixed routes   Operations staff is currently working on the 
schedules for the STIF funded route expansion. 

  

  
 

  

Priority One (Continued) 

  
• Improving System   

o Improved lighting at bus shelters   
o Route on-time performances   
o Amenities   

   101



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

• Technologies    
  

o E-fare    
o Electronic charging stations on buses  
o On-board wi-fi   

• Improve Appearance   
o Buses    
o Shelters   
o Facilities   

Priority Two   
 

•       Develop feasibility of moving Warrenton Operations facility  
o Out of the inundation zone  
o Upgrade to include an automatic bus washing system 

 

•        Begin to convert the fleet to electric and away from fossil fuels Unsuccessful for 
the 2019 LowNo grant solicitation. 

•        Strategically Locate Park and Rides  

•        Improve District Signage  
 

  

Priority Three   
   

• Identify new funding opportunities   
o Seek public/private partnerships   
o Continue to explore new Federal/State/Local grant 

opportunities   
o Rebuild Ride Pal Program and Volunteer Program  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

   102



Operations 

August 2019 Report 

Paul Lewicki 

 

As we continue to work at increasing our driver ranks in anticipation of our STIF-funded service 

expansion, we struggle to find applicants for the position.  We are currently working on three 

applications but have lost a part-time driver during the period.  I must report that a timely roll out 

of new and expanded service in September and October is dependent upon having adequate 

drivers to ensure a successful implementation.  We are anxious to find a new HR manager who 

can help us effectively recruit the necessary personnel.  We reached out to the ATU leadership 

seeking any help they could offer in finding drivers for us.  I had hoped they could insert 

something in a publication or on a bulletin board.  They were not able to help.  Again, we need 4 

drivers by October and 6 more going into next year - to be able to implement our planned route 

changes and enhancements.  Our drivers’ supervisors continue to supplement our drivers to cover 

route assignments.  The ATU is aware and understanding of the situation. 

 

We also continue to seek applicants for our Lot Attendant and Mechanic Assistant positions. 

 

We continue to get better at using new dispatch software, Ecolane, for our paratransit operations.  

The software affords us greater opportunity to schedule shared rides which reduces our costs. 

Looking forward to a meeting with Northwest Ride staff to refine our process. 

 

The purchase orders for our four new buses had been approved by ODOT and sent to the 

winning bidder.  Creative Bus Sales won the bid and has initially suggested a delivery date for 

the buses in April of 2020.  We’ll keep our fingers crossed!  The Category B bus we ordered will 

come with Automatic Voice Annunciation (AVA) technology.  This technology will use GPS 

information combined with our computerized route information to announce the next stop.  This 

is currently a task performed by the drivers.  The system will also display the stop name on a 

reader board for the passengers’ information.  This will be our first opportunity to evaluate the 

effectiveness of such a system. 

 

Revenue vehicle reliability is better this summer season than it has been in past years.  The fleet 

maintenance team works hard to keep all air conditioning systems on the buses in good working 

order during these warmer months.  Still some of our older buses make this quite challenging.  

We are pleased to report, however, that we have not had any service interruptions due to 

equipment shortages this summer.  

 

Bus #92, a 2015 Freightliner required repairs costing about $20,000.  Repair or replacement of 

several components, including the turbocharger, catalytic converter and several sensors were 

required.  This bus has 236,000 miles on it.  It’s service life is 10 years or 350,000 miles. 

   103



RIDE ASSIST  

August 2019 Report 

Jennifer Geisler 

 

 

• July 2019, RideAssist had a total of 1,058 rides for an average of 34 rides per day.  There were            

756 ADA rides, two Dial-A-Ride, 131 personal care attendants, eight VETP rides and we 

provided 161 Medicaid rides for NorthWest Rides. 

 

• There were zero ride denials for ADA Paratransit. 

 

• ADA Paratransit Report 

 

Number of completed applications received in July: 6   

Number of incomplete applications received in July: 0 

Number of interview/assessments scheduled: 0   

Number of interview/assessments completed: 5   

Number of determinations made: 7   

 Within 21 days:  5  

 More than 21 days: 2 

Determination by type: 

 Unconditional: 6  

 Conditional: 1  

 Temporary: 0  

 Not eligible: 0      

Number of appeals requested: 0  

Number of appeals heard: 0  

 

RideAssist Fares Collected/Billed for July 2019 

 

• Para-transit Fares:  $1096 

• Tickets Collected:  $662 

• Medicaid Billed:  $2401  

• Ticket books sold:  $552  

• Dial-A-Ride Fares;  $16 

• VETP Billed:  $216   

 

   104



 

Mobility Manager  

August 2019 Mobility report  

Jason Jones  

 

• In the month of July, I began taking on Transit Center manager responsibilities and have 

restructured my time allotment.  I continue checking back in on previous Travel Trainees 

as well as initiating several new opportunities to travel train.   

 

• I had 2 travel trainings in July and for the first time had 2 new future trainings scheduled 

due to word of mouth from a previous trainee.     

 

• I have kept up my communication with local businesses in hopes of seeing them take 

advantage of our services through the travel training program.         

 

• The Veterans Enhanced Transportation Program (VETP) provided 8 trips to our local 

Veterans.  This included a period of time where our volunteer driver was not available.   

 

• I have helped leadership in keeping the TO program afloat while we look for the next 

person to run the program.  Mary Parker has been in contact with ODOT to ensure that 

our responsibilities are kept up and maintained for the time being.  
 

 

  

 

   105



 
Outreach and Education 

August 2019 Board Report  

Mary Parker 
 

Tongue Point Job Corp Student Transit Training- All going well with the 8 AM transit training classes. 

Class size has increased to about 15 for the past 3 sessions. I have spent a little extra time talking about our 

expansion of service on the weekends which will mean a lot to these students. I also have focused on accessing 

some of the nice parks and beaches this time of year as so many are located on or near our routes.   

Outreach- I have continued to deliver our Summer 2019 schedules to the hotels and businesses in both North 

and South County. I have received a lot of positive feedback about us running the Streetcar for Route 17 in 

Cannon Beach. It is so appreciated by both tourists, locals, businesses and hotel management.  

Mobility- I have been working with Jason to and develop an outreach plan for the new weekly Transit 

Engagement sessions in Astoria and Seaside that will have a soft opening on September 9th with a program 

“kick-off” and larger media blast at the beginning of October. Plans include posters, flyers, rack cards, business 

cards, press release, radio ads, interviews and targeted outreach throughout the community including the 

Hispanic council.   

Seaside Transit Center- I have started a refocused push for public awareness in South County of our services 

and the “new location” of the Seaside Transit Office.  

Transportation Options- I have started doing outreach for the 2019, “Get There Challenge”. This is very 

similar to the Drive Less Challenge from the past few years that encourages the use of carpools, vanpools, 

transit, biking, walking or teleworking to make trips greener, friendlier and less expensive. Participants keep 

track of and log in the type of greener transportation they are using during the challenge which also registers 

them for some very nice prizes. The 2019 “Get There Challenge” takes place from October 7th through 21st.  

For more information or to register go to- Info@GetThereOregon.org  

                 

   106

mailto:Info@GetThereOregon.org



